# Destiny School 798 E Prickly Pear Drive Globe, Az 85501 (928) 425-0925

COVID-19 Risk Mitigation Plan For Re-Opening Schools 2020-2021 School Year

**August 6, 2020** 

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Topic	Page
STAFFING ASSIGNMENTS	3
TRAINING AND COMMUNICATION	4
Training	4
Communication	4
STEP 2 PROTOCOLS: STUDENTS ON CAMPUS	4
Daily Health Screenings	4
Enhanced Social Distancing	6
Hand Washing	8
Face Coverings	8
Student Belongings/Materials	8
Trips and Activities	8
Specialized Classes	9
STEP 2 PROTOCOLS: EMPLOYEES	9
Exposure Assessment and Face Coverings	9
Visitors to School	9
Daily Screening	9
Handwashing	10
Enhanced Social Distancing	10
Face Coverings	10
Cleaning and Disinfecting	11
STEP THREE PROTOCOLS: STUDENTS ON CAMPUS	12
Social Distancing	12
Trips and Activities	13
PROCEDURES FOR COVID-19 SYMPTOMS OR A POSITIVE TEST	14
PROCEDURES FOR RETURN FROM ISOLATION	15

Revised 8/6/2020

2

# **COVID-19 Risk Mitigation Plan for Re-Opening Schools**

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the Arizona Department of Education (ADE) recommend that reopening decisions be driven by the current prevalence of COVID-19 in the community. (Please review ADE's Roadmap for Reopening Schools, page 30, for more information.) The protocols that follow do not address whether a school should reopen, but instead include recommendations for mitigating risk once the decision to reopen has been made. The protocols are based on CDC "step" guidelines—specifically, Steps 2 and 3. Step 2 protocols, which include enhanced social distancing measures, should be followed until guidance from Arizona officials indicates that a transition to Step 3 protocols is appropriate.

The following protocols are to be implemented at Destiny School. The School will adhere to its typical procedures to address the needs of students or staff with disabilities.

IMPORTANT NOTE: As the School receives new information or guidance, or as required to meet new federal or state law requirements, the School may need to revise the Plan. If this occurs, we will promptly notify you of changes to the Plan.

### STAFFING ASSIGNMENTS

The school principal or designee will coordinate all messages to students, parents, staff, and the community regarding reopening, possible closure, and other COVID-19-related information. The principal or designee will ensure that each site has posters with messaging on hand-washing and covering of coughs and sneezes located throughout, along with posters at site entrances reminding individuals not to enter if sick.

The principal will coordinate implementation of cleaning protocols, including ensuring that sufficient cleaning supplies are available to janitorial staff and, as appropriate, students and staff.

The principal will coordinate social distancing protocols, including ensuring that student and staff schedules, as well as facility set-up, allow for implementation of the protocols.

The school principal and the school health office personnel will coordinate and implement the protocols set forth in the **Step Two Protocols: Employees** section of this document for screening of staff. That individual will be responsible for:

- Communicating any reported case of COVID-19 among the school population to Human Resources, and
- Informing Human Resources if absences of staff on any given day are above 10%, if absences of students on any given day is above 15% or if there appears to be a cluster of respiratory-related illnesses.

3

The School's Special Education Director will ensure that the needs of special education students and students with special needs are being met in the context of implementation of these safety protocols.

### TRAINING AND COMMUNICATION

### **Training**

Prior to students returning to campus, all staff will be trained on implementation of these protocols. Training will include proper use of protective personal equipment (PPE) (if applicable), face coverings, supplies, cleaning and disinfecting and other measures.

# **Communication**

Prior to students returning to campus, parents will be sent a copy (or directed to review a copy on the School or school website) of the portions of these protocols that relate to students and visitors. As part of this process, the School will send communication to all parents that outlines the symptoms for which parents must screen each morning, as well as the expectation that students will not be sent to school or placed on the bus if they are exhibiting any COVID-19 symptoms. The School will require a signed acknowledgement from parents regarding these protocols.

Paige Escobedo is the designated COVID-19 point of contact. She will be responsible for answering parent questions regarding implementation of COVID-19 protocols.

### STEP 2 PROTOCOLS: STUDENTS ON CAMPUS

Step 2 protocols are established based on community monitoring that reveals low levels of community spread of COVID-19. These practices are put in place as part of a general scale-up of operations.

### **Daily Health Screenings**

# At Home

Students and parents will be informed that students must not come to school if they exhibit any of the following symptoms:

- fever of 100.4 degrees or higher, or chills;
- shortness of breath or difficulty breathing;
- muscle aches:
- sore throat:
- headache;
- fatique;
- congestion or runny nose;
- cough;
- vomiting;
- diarrhea; or
- new loss of taste or smell
- any other symptoms identified in the future as being COVID-19 related

Also, Parents should be informed via registration documents, on the school website, and via email reminders that they should screen students for the above symptoms each morning, should self- report symptoms, and must keep students at home if any symptoms are present. Parents should be assured that students will have the opportunity to make up work missed due to symptoms of COVID-19.

Note: The school will not give out attendance awards during the COVID-19 health crisis.

### On the Bus

All buses will have clearly visible signage communicating to parents that students should not enter the school bus with any of COVID-19 symptoms.

A bus driver or aide, wearing appropriate face covering or PPE, will be tasked with visually checking each student prior to the student boarding the bus. If a student exhibits visible symptoms, the following steps will be taken:

- If the parent is at the bus stop, the student will return to their parent.
- If the parent is not at the bus stop, the student will be provided with a face covering if they do not have one already, and—if possible—will be socially distanced from other persons. Upon arrival at the school, the student will report to the school's health office. The parent will be contacted to pick up the student immediately.

If a student has a chronic condition such as allergies or asthma, parents should inform staff of that condition. Once the parent informs staff of the condition, students with symptoms aligned with the condition (e.g., runny nose or cough, etc.) should be permitted to ride the bus.

# At School

Upon arrival at school, each student will proceed directly to the student's first period classroom.

A staff member will visually check each student for symptoms prior to students entering the school. Any student with visible symptoms of runny nose, cough, shortness of breath, or vomiting, will be taken to the health office. Parents may be contacted for pick-up with the following exceptions:

If the student has a runny nose and the nurse/health aide observes that there are no other symptoms, the nurse/health aide will contact the parent to inquire as to whether the student has had any other symptoms or there have been any COVID-19 exposures in the home. If not, the student may return to class.

If the student has health information on file that confirms a diagnosis of asthma or other respiratory
condition and the nurse/health aide observes that there are no other symptoms, the nurse/health
aide will contact the parent to inquire as to whether the student has had any other symptoms or there
have been any COVID-19 exposures in the home. If not, the student may return to class.

5

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Visible symptoms include runny nose, cough, shortness of breath, or vomiting.

# **Enhanced Social Distancing**

# **Basic Social Distancing Practices**

- Staff members will educate and regularly remind students to maintain at least 6 feet of distance between individuals at all times possible.
- Students will remain with the same groupings and the same staff throughout the day. Schedules for middle school students will be created to allow teachers to move from classroom to classroom.
- Class sizes will be reduced as much as possible within the constraints of the number of students enrolled and the physical layout of the school.

# **Drop-off and Pick-up Procedures**

- Some parents may not allow their children to ride the bus under current conditions, leading to greater crowding at drop-off or pick-up locations. The School will review current layouts to consider potential expansion of these locations when possible.
- During drop-off or pick-up of students, parents will be required to stay in their vehicle, unless a site
  administrator provides express permission to leave the vehicle for good cause. In this case, the
  family will be asked to arrive at or leave school before or after assigned times for most students.
- Students will enter campus through different points of entry based on grade level to allow social distancing.

# **Bus Transportation Seating / Other Requirements**

- All students and staff must wear face coverings when on a school bus unless they have been granted an exception by the School.
- Buses should be loaded from back to front at bus stops, and unloaded from front to back when at school (to minimize students passing by other students).
- When possible given bus capacity, students will be assigned seats with one student per row and, when possible, an empty row between students.
- Siblings will be allowed to sit together if they wish.
- Where students can be assigned one per row, they should sit closest to the window.
- Maximum bus ventilation should be provided, including open windows (weather permitting). Drivers should set ventilation to non-recirculating mode.

### **Classroom Layout**

- Individual plexiglass learning stations have been created for each student...
- Desks must be positioned 6 feet apart unless that spacing is not possible due to the size of the classroom and the number of students assigned to it. If desks cannot be positioned 6 feet apart, students must wear face covering, unless an exception has been granted.
- Desks must be positioned in the same direction rather than facing each other.
- Students are not to be physically grouped to work together. Instead, teachers should use technology

to facilitate group work and group learning where appropriate for the age, subject, and capabilities of the students.

# **Communal Spaces**

- Hallways will be marked with adhesive tape to direct students to stay on one side of the hallway for each direction of travel.
- Where possible given the school layout, certain hallways may be designated one-way.

# **Playgrounds and Playground Equipment**

- Only one class at a time will use playground equipment. It will be sanitized between classes.
- Individual classes may be assigned specific time slots for students to be taken outside for physical movement, with social distancing to be maintained at all times.
- Separate classrooms should not mingle during outside activity time.
- Staff should be creative in employing techniques to maintain social distancing during unstructured time.
- Teachers and students are to wash their hands following playground activities.

# **Lunch Rooms**

The cafeteria will not be utilized during lunch. Students will be served in their classrooms at their learning stations.

- Lunches should be served on disposable food service items (trays, plates, etc.), if possible. If disposable items cannot be used, have food service staff collect items while wearing gloves.
- Students are prohibited from sharing lunch items with one another.
- Staff are responsible to clean and disinfect the classrooms after lunch.

# **Bathrooms**

- Students should enter bathrooms in groups no larger than the number of stalls/urinals in the bathroom. Students should be directed to maintain social distancing while in the bathroom as much as possible.
- Posters will be displayed reminding students of proper handwashing techniques.

# **Front Office**

- Sneeze guards will be added to all reception areas.
- There will be adhesive tape stickers indicating 6 feet distancing from the front desk and posted signage directing visitors not to come closer than the tape markings.

### Hand Washing

Students and staff should wash their hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, or use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol at the following times:

- upon arrival at school (use hand sanitizer if there is no sink in the classroom),
- after being outside for physical activity,
- before and after lunch,
- prior to leaving school for home, and
- after sneezing, coughing, or blowing nose.

# Face Coverings

All persons, including, but not limited to, staff, students, vendors, visitors, and volunteers, shall wear a face covering while on any School property, in any School facility, at any School event, while indoors, and in any School vehicle, including School busses or vehicles rented or leased by the School.

Face coverings should not be worn by:

- A. Children under the age of two (2);
- B. Anyone who has trouble breathing;
- C. Anyone who is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the mask without assistance.

Students under the age of five are not required to wear face coverings.

Students shall be allowed breaks to remove their face covering in a safe environment when outside in playground settings with distancing.

The Superintendent may make other exceptions to the requirement to wear a face covering while keeping in mind the health and safety of everyone involved.

\*Any student who has difficulty breathing or who is incapable of physically removing the face covering on his/her own will not wear face coverings, and alternate methods of protection will be discussed by parents and staff.

\*\*\*

Students may bring their own face coverings to and from school. Dress code policy applies to face coverings. When feasible, the school will have a supply of face coverings available to provide students who cannot afford or do not have their own.

Note: Face coverings are designed to protect other individuals rather than the individual wearing the covering. Accordingly, the greater number of students wearing face coverings, the greater the overall transmission mitigation that will be achieved. Plastic face guards, which provide protection for the wearer, will not be required or provided, but are permitted.

8

### Student Belongings/Materials

- For younger grades and where possible, student belongings should be kept in individual bins or cubbies labeled with each student's name. For other students, belongings should stay with the student each day.
- Students should not share school supplies. However, if a school supply or piece of equipment must be shared by students (for instance, a pencil sharpener or blocks/toys), a staff member should wipe down the item with disinfectant after each use.

### **Trips and Activities**

- No field trips will be scheduled until further notice.
- Teachers may use virtual learning opportunities (such as virtual tours of museums) to enhance students' educational experiences.
- Traditional in-person school-wide assemblies will not be held until further notice. As an alternative, virtual school-wide assemblies may be held with student groups remaining in their classrooms.
- No in-person large-scale school events such as "Back to School Night" or fall carnivals will be scheduled until further notice, unless the events can be reconfigured to maintain social distancing and is approved by the Superintendent.
- Small-scale activities like parent-teacher conferences may take place over the phone or other electronic means.
- No in-person extracurricular activities will be scheduled until further notice unless the activity can be conducted in compliance with the protocols in this document and is approved by the Superintendent.

# Specialized Classes

Some classes, such as science labs, choir, band, PE, and others, may require alternative lesson plans to limit contact and the sharing of supplies, and to reduce the spread of respiratory droplets.

# **STEP 2 PROTOCOLS: EMPLOYEES**

Step 2 protocols are established based on community monitoring that reveals low levels of community spread of COVID-19. These practices are put in place as part of a general scale-up of operations.

### **Exposure Assessment and PPE**

Prior to allowing employees to report to work, School administration, in conjunction with relevant site supervisors and department supervisors will assess each work site to determine whether PPE is necessary for specific positions to limit the spread of COVID-19. If a position is determined to require PPE, the School will provide the PPE to staff at no cost and train staff on its correct use.

# Visitors to School

Visitors and volunteers on school grounds are prohibited during the COVID-19 health crisis.

# **Daily Screening**

### Supporting yourself and one another

We are a team. Taking care of yourself and one another is important in maintaining a healthy work family. 9

To that end: Revised 8/6/2020

- Do not report to work if you do not feel well or if you have been exposed by a family member. Report this to your supervisor.
- Be conscientious and understanding of your co-workers who may be dealing with child care issues, illness or loss of loved ones, financial insecurity, or other issues.
- Kindly and professionally address one another when social distancing practices are not followed.
   (e.g. "I want to be sure we all stay healthy, could you stand six feet away please?", "I know it is hard to remember, we all need to ..., etc.).
- Remember each employee has a different point of view, different background, and different experiences related to COVID-19. Do not make assumptions about what is driving another person's thinking or behaviors. Pause on judging and be open to understanding.
- Respect employees' privacy. Ensure confidentiality in compliance with the American Disabilities Act.

# **Managing Your Illness:**

Though employees may become ill due to a variety of colds, flues or other illnesses, COVID-19 has required organizations to respond to illnesses differently than in previous times. Employees must follow guidelines and reporting procedures.

- Stay home if you feel sick, have a family member that is positive and has exposed you or if you are having any symptoms of COVID-19. (https://www.maricopa.gov/5512/Sick- or-Exposed-to-COVID-19#symptoms). Contact your supervisor and HR immediately if you have been exposed or have COVID- 19 symptoms.
- Follow all School procedures for reporting leave time.
- Follow HR directions for returning to work from an illness.
- Speak with your principal/supervisor and HR, if you have questions or concerns.
- Review Managing COVID Exposure and Illness document for additional guidance.

### **Handwashing**

Employees should wash their hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, or use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol at the following times, at minimum:

- upon arrival at school;
- after being outside for student physical activity;
- before and after lunch:
- after sneezing, coughing, or blowing nose; and
- after physical contact with other staff or students.

### **Enhanced Social Distancing**

- Employees must maintain a distance of at least 6 feet between individuals, unless doing so is not possible or feasible (e.g. to perform essential job duties, to protect students).
- If an employee needs to touch a student or another staff member (e.g. toileting help, use of restraint, the employee should resume social distancing as soon as safely possible, wash their hands, and disinfect any surfaces they touched.

### **Face Coverings or PPE**

To encourage behaviors that reduce the spread of COVID-19, all employees will be required to use of face coverings that cover both the nose and mouth and in compliance with School dress code policy.

The employee's work assignment will continue to be the primary factor in determining PPE requirements.

The following outline the face covering requirement:

- Employees not working alone must wear face coverings.
- Employees who have been assigned duties that require a distance of less than six (6) feet apart must wear face coverings.
- Employees who ride in vehicles with others (work assignments, traveling from work location to work location, traveling to lunch, etc.) must wear face coverings.
- Employees assigned specific job duties, may also require additional PPE (gloves, face shield, face covering, etc.) provided by the School.

Note: Wearing a face covering does not replace the need to maintain social distancing of at least 6 feet whenever possible.

# **Cleaning and Disinfecting**

- Prior to reopening, the School will inspect water systems to ensure that they are safe for use after the prolonged shutdown. This will help to minimize the risk of waterborne pathogens that cause illnesses such as Legionnaires' Disease.
- Designated staff will conduct daily cleaning and disinfecting of all frequently touched surfaces in work areas, such as door handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, desks, and learning tools. The playground, sports equipment, and any other shared items (if they are being used) must be cleaned between uses by groups of students.
- All staff will be expected to clean and disinfect workspaces when they arrive at work and just before leaving work.
- Day schedules will be assigned to custodial staff for increased cleaning of surfaces and bathrooms throughout the day.
- Night schedules daily cleaning tasks will include; student desk, chairs, counter tops, sinks, restrooms, trash, vacuum, and mop floors.

Cleaning and Disinfecting During School Day		
Custodial Staff	School Classified and Certified Staff	
CHEMICAL: Rejuvinal #16, #25 & QT-TB	CHEMICAL: QT-TB (Ready-to-Use Chemical	
	that Cleans/Deodorizes/Disinfects)	
Wear proper PPE when cleaning and	Wear proper PPE when cleaning and	
disinfecting	disinfecting	
<ul> <li>Gloves</li> </ul>	<ul><li>Gloves</li></ul>	
Face Mask	∘ Face Mask	
<ul> <li>Safety Goggles</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Safety Goggles</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Store cleaning chemicals in a locked cabinet when students are in class.</li> <li>Cleaning products should not be used near children.</li> </ul>	

Clean and disinfect high traffic areas hourly	Clean and disinfect high traffic work areas as needed.
Tables will be cleaned and sanitized daily, after every use and prior to food being served.	Cleaning Electronics such as tablets, touch screens, keyboards, laptops, headphones utilize an alcohol-based wipe containing at least 70% alcohol to disinfect. (Chemical: Q&C Germicidal Disinfecting Wipes or QT-TB)

### STEP 3 PROTOCOLS: STUDENTS ON CAMPUS

Step 3 protocols are established based on community monitoring that reveals even lower levels of community spread of COVID-19 than in Step 2. Consult with local health officials for guidance. When the School progresses to Step 3, the Step 2 protocols should remain in place with the following exceptions:

# Social Distancing

- Social distancing protocols may be relaxed somewhat during Step 3.
- Staff members should continue to educate and regularly remind students to maintain 6 feet of distance between individuals at all times possible. However, increased social interaction among classes is permissible.
- Nonessential visitors and volunteers at school may continue to be prohibited. If volunteers and visitors
  to school are permitted, they should be limited in number and must agree to adhere to the School's
  social distancing and other protocols.

### **Drop-off/Pick-up Procedures**

• The Administration will notify parents if the drop-off or pick-up process changes to allow parents to exit their vehicles during drop-off or pick-up.

# **Communal Spaces**

# <u>Playgrounds</u>

- Classes may be permitted use of playground equipment.
- No more than two classes to a specific time slot, and schedule time slots such that there is sufficient time between classroom use for disinfection of the playground equipment.

### Lunch Rooms

The cafeteria will be utilized during lunch, with increased safety measures, including the following:

- Tables should be marked to show where students may sit.
- Students should be assigned to a specific seat with a minimum of 3 feet between marked seats.
- Cafeteria seating should be limited to the number of assigned seats.
- If students line up for lunch service, only one class should line up at a time.
- Markings should be placed on the floor to indicate where students should stand to maintain social distancing. Alternatively, staff should serve each student at their assigned seat.
- Lunches should be served on disposable food service items (trays, plates, etc.), if possible. If disposable items cannot be used, have food service staff collect items while wearing gloves.

13

- Students are prohibited from sharing lunch items with one another.
- Staff are responsible to clean and disinfect the cafeteria after every use.

### **Trips and Activities**

- Field trips that can comply with the protocols in this document will be permitted *only* if the area to be visited is at a Step 3 of community mitigation.
- Teachers should continue to use virtual learning opportunities (such as virtual tours of museums) to enhance students' educational experiences.
- School assemblies may be held in staggered groups to ensure that social distancing protocols can be maintained. Unless social distancing can be maintained with all students in the same room, school-wide assemblies must be held virtually with student groups remaining in their classrooms.

# PROCEDURES FOR COVID-19 SYMPTOMS OR A POSITIVE TEST

If a person becomes sick with COVID-19 symptoms or reports a positive COVID-19 test, the procedures listed below should be followed:

- 1. Employees must immediately report the situation to their supervisor ONLY. Information will only be shared with those that have a legitimate need to know.
- 2. If an employee develops COVID-19 symptoms at work, the employee should be separated from others until the employee can safely leave the campus or school site. If an employee cannot safely self-transport, the employee should be asked to identify a family member or friend or another individual to transport them. If no such persons are available, the site administrator should identify other transportation options. If the employee appears to be in medical distress, 911 should be called.
- 3. If a student develops COVID-19 symptoms at school, the student should be separated from others, except that a staff member should be available to supervise the student. In such cases, the staff member must wear PPE or a face covering and maintain a distance of at least 6 feet from the student at all times, unless there is an emergency. The student's parent/guardian or the emergency contact should be immediately notified and told to pick the student up from school. If the student appears to be in medical distress, 911 should be called.
- 4. Site personnel should close off any areas that were exposed to the symptomatic employee or student for a prolonged period. Staff should wait 24 hours before cleaning and disinfecting those areas. During that time, if feasible, open windows or outside doors to increase air circulation. After 24 hours, the areas should be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected, per CDC guidelines.
- 5. Site personnel should determine whether other employees or students were in close contact with the symptomatic person (i.e. Within 6 feet and for 10 or more minutes) and so notify the site Administration or direct supervisor for further instructions regarding notification of possible exposure to those individuals.
- 6. The identity of an individual who is symptomatic or who tests positive for COVID-19 shall be treated as confidential information and should not be disclosed to other employees, parents, students or others unless express permission or direction to do so is given by the Superintendent/designee.

# PROCEDURES FOR RETURN FROM ISOLATION

### Individuals With COVID-19 with COVID-19 Symptoms

Individuals with COVID-19 who had COVID-19 symptoms may return to on-site work or school under the following conditions:

- 1. At least 10 days\* have passed since symptom onset; AND
- 2. At least 72 hours have passed since resolution of fever without the use of fever-reducing medications; AND
- 3. Other symptoms of COVID-19 have improved.

Note: If the individual experienced a severe case of COVID-19, he/she may need to remain at home for a longer period. These individuals should consult a health care provider before returning to school or work.

# Individuals With COVID-19 Who Never Developed COVID-19 Symptoms

Individuals with COVID-19 who never developed COVID-19 symptoms may return to on-site work or school 10 days after the date of their first positive COVID-19 test, so long as no new symptoms develop.

### Individuals in Close Contact with a Person Who Has COVID-19

Individuals who were in close contact with a person who has COVID-19 may return to on-site work or school 14 days after the date of the individual's last contact with the person with COVID- 19 to whom the individual was exposed.

15